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BEST FARM STONE BARN
~ L Hermitage ~

The Best Farm, known also as L'Hermitage, is a part of
Monocacy Mational Battlefield, Frederick County, Maryland.
Located on the west side of the Monocacy River, the farm
adjoins the Urbana (formerly Georgetown) Pike and is
characterized by gently rolling fields cresting to brood knolls

The present day Best Farm
occupies the southern 274 acres
of this 748 acre plantation. The
Vi di family, of French

with visibility towards the Pike, Frederick City, the M.
River, the B & O Railrood (CSX) ond Interstate 270. The
form of 426 ocres was under the ownership of Charles E.
ond Ariana McElfresh Trail ond tenonted by the David Best
family when it became a stoging orea for Confederate
troops during the Civil Wor Battle of Monocacy on July 9,
1864. As Confederate lines odvanced from Frederick
towards Washington, Union skirmishes offered resistance
near Monococy Junction on the Best Farm property. While
the most intense fighting occurred across the river at the
Worthington (Clifton) and Thomas (Araby) Farms,
Confederate artillery positions on the Best Farm kept the
Union ot bay neor the Gecrgetown Fike Bridge ond
Monocacy Junction. A 1912 account by Private Frederick W.
Wild (Alexander's Baltimore Battery) identifies sharpshooters
in another barn on the Best Farm (not the barn of this
study) to which the Union guns returned fire. Additionally,
troops established short—term comps ot the Best Form
during the Marylond compaign, September 1862 and the
Gettysburg campaign in late June and July 1863 (Beasley,
Joy, ed. Archeological Overview an e

I ificoti luation , 2005).
The fields remain under cultivation and in 1993 the Notional
Park Service acquired 274 acres with the buildings.

Settlement in the vicinity of the form dotes to the
mid-18th century, principally as tenanted holdings of the
Scottish merchant Jomes Marshall. Marshall assembled
several tracts by 1768 into BE1 ocres, ond with on
odditional purchase in 1791 of B6 acres of Daniel Dulaney's
Locust Level, the troct became Arcadia (patented August
31, 1793). Victoire Vincendiere purchased 457 acres of
odditional Locust Level londs from Daniel Dulaney in March
1795 ond subsequently on April 27, 1798 acquired 291
acres of Marshall's Locust Level and Arcadia tracts to
assemble L' Hermitage.

descent, emigrated to Frederick
ca. 1793 from Western
Saint—Dominque (Haiti), West
Indies. By 1800 Victoire and 17
of her extended fomily were living
at L'Hermilage with 90 slaves.
Unusual for Frederick County, this
large—scale ensloved population
may have been on attempt to
replicate the plantation operations
they left in the West Indies. By
1820, however, the number of
sloves decreased to 48, joining
with four free African Americons
and eleven members of the

Id. Victoire Vi diere
sold L'Hermitage in 1827 and
moved to a house in Frederick
City where she resided until her
death in 1854.

The Vicendieres are credited with
constructing several buildings thot
comprise the Best Farm today, including the main house,
log and stone secondary dwelling and the stone barn. An

lly large tox ent in 1798 suggests the
possible construction of the stone barn (as well as other
improvements) by that year. Features characteristic of 18th
century barn construction include the full stone walls,
dominant water table and ground level entrance generally
found with English threshing barns. In the southeastern
Pennsylvania source region for vernaculor architecture ideas
that moved through the Frederick area into Virginio, English
threshing barns were primarily pre—Revolutionary War, with
full stone walls and ground—level drive though bays. Such
barns also included interior froming bents supporting a
gable roof, ventilation openings (slits, louvers), and an area
sectioned for animal stabling, but did not have a water
table. The thorough mix of cultures saw the development of
the Pennsylvania bank barn by 1800; thus the occurrence
of English threshing barns by this date are rore and
possibly a product of outside cultures. The strong French
heritage of the Vincendieres may account for the late use
of this form (portions functioning more like a hay
barracks), as well os the formal feature of the woter toble
and elegont arched doorway opening in the north wall.

The hipped roof of standing seam metal that defines the
present oppearance of the born is late—19th or early 20th
century construction, identified by circulor sown rofters and
plates and the use of o ridgepole. The date "1911" is
painted on one of the rofters. The roof and ridgepole are
supported by o poir of scissor trusses at eoch peak. This
creates an entire encumbered interior space, similor to the
Thomas Form barn, rebuilt co. 1912 ond may reflect
changes in ogriculture production at this time.

The design of the original roof is
unknown, although the tops of
the stone walls are consistently
finished ot the same height. It is
possible that the bam was built
with o gable roof supported by
interior framing bents that were
removed with the advent of the
new roof design. A strong wind
in 1996 tore off a small section
of the roof and damaged some
of the rofters. The Park Service
repaired the roof in kind,
repairing the two scissor trusses,
replacing all the commeon and
hip rofters, odding collor ties and
tension cables and replacing roof
loth and the stonding seam
sheet metal roof.

The stonework of the walls is
laid in random paottern using
rubble flot limestone with a mix
of mortars and evidence of o
light wash of stucco. In addition
to the unique water table that
protrudes an average of 4 inches
around the entire barn, is the delineation of “leveling
courses” defining the vertical wall in five stages. This may
indicate series of seasonal building campaigns to construct
the born in increments, including the water table and two
feet above, then in sections of roughly four feet. In
oddition to the lorge open center bays is the unique
arched "doorway” obove the water table in the north wall.
The segmental arch, similar to one supporting the hearth
and chimney in the secondary dwelling, is constructed of
brick and the opening is ten feet high. At some point the
lower portion was filled with stone to creote o window. On
the opposite wall is evidence of an open area in the
center, patched in at a later date with stone. It oppears to
be roughly circulor, but without finished edges and
approximately four feet in diometer.

Of additional interest are o series of projecting stones
ploced vertically near the cormers on the north wall. While
their spacing is inconsistent from top to bottom, their
placement is such that o flat edge is perpendiculor to the
existing north wall ot one foot, eleven inches in from the
comners, namely the thickness of the existing walls. As such
the stones oppear to have been set to serve as tie—ins to
an intended future oddition of stone to the north thot was
never built. There is suggestion of heavier plaster on the
interior walls in on even line roughly seven feet above the
ground, perhaps for defined or floored spaces of an earlier
period. A small rectongulor hole with finished brick edges is
located near the woter table on the west eave side. This
side has o roughly built up earthen bank of limestone and
quartz stones ond marble to allow wagon access to the
level dirt interior floor. Some iron and posts against the
west wall indicate fencing up to the bamn on this side,

Limited archoeology conducted by the National Park Service
on the south side identified on oddition of 25 feet by 35
feet with stone foundation roughly two thick. Evidence of a
fire was determined by charred timbers ond onnecled nails
The wall materiol could not be determined, although the
machine cut nails found suggest 19th century construction.
Other borns documented on the Best Farm include a 19th
century forebay or bank barn to the north of the house
that wos destroyed in the bottle and was rebuilt in 1864
(War Claims), but to be destroyed again from high winds
ca. 1991. The Wiles family, tenants of the farm from 1924
to 1999, built odditional agricultural buildings, including a
concrete block dairy barn and milk house, well house and
silo, and in 1992 a loerge oluminum pole barn; these were
removed in 2005,

The meosured drowings of the Best Barn were produced by
the Bucks County Community College, Newtown, Pennsylvonia
under a cooperative agreement with the National Park
Service, Historic Preservation Training Center (HPTC), H.
Thomas McGrath, Superintendent, National Capitol Region,
Cultural Resources Preservation Progrom (Joe Lawler,
Regional Director). Site assistance and historical information
was provided by Monocacy Notional Battlefield, Susan Trail,
Superintendent and Joy Beasley, Cultural Resource Progrom
Manager. Direct project oversight was provided by Thomas
Vitanza, RA, Senior Historical Architect, HPTC. Project
direction and fabric analysis by Kathryn Ann Auerbach,
Instructor, BCCC. Student porticiponts include Diana
Barbera—Horwitz, Jennifer Eagen, Mirka John, Kevin Keating,
Stephen Russell, Christopher Smith, Vickie Stouffer and
Maureen Victoria. Additional student assistonce by Petrona
Charles, M. Scott Doyle, Patricia Fisher—Olsen, R. Stephen
Gray, Lisa Mroszczyk, Geoffrey Raike, Lexa Rio ond Suzanne
Stosiulatis. This project is dedicated to the variety of
cultures whose contributions have helped shape the
Frederick County londscope.
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INDICATED WINDOW OPENINGS WERE BRICKED IN DURING A WINDOW REPLACEMENT JOB
IN THE 1970s.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TH
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DUE TO LIMITED ACCESS TOTHE BUILDING, SOME ELEMENTS WERE ESTIMATED BASED ON
VISUAL OBSERVATION, PHOTOGRAPHS, AND COMPARISONS AMONG FACADES.
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NOTE:
DUE TO LIMITED ACCESS TOTHE BUILDING, SOME ELEMENTS WERE ESTIMATED BASED ON
VISUAL OBSERVATION, PHOTOGRAPHS, AND COMPARISONS AMONG FACADES.

RYAN MCNUTT,

DOORS ARE FURNISHED WITH TRANSOM AND GLASS VISION PANEL

KENT STATE UNIVERSITY CAE
DEPARTMENT OF THE

CHAIR RAILS TERMINATE AT EDGE OF DOOR CASEWORK.
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NOTE
DUE TO LIMITED ACCESS TOTHE BUILDING, SOME ELEMENTS WERE ESTIMATED BASED ON
VISUAL OBSERVATION, PHOTOGRAPHS, AND COMPARISONS AMONG FACADES
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DUE TO LIMITED ACCESS TO THE BURLDING, SOME ELEMENTS WERE ESTIMATED BASED ON VISUAL
OBSERVATION, PHOTOGRAPHS, AND COMPARISONS AMONG FACADES.
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FARMER'S AND EXCHANGE
BANK

141 EAST BAY STREET

CHARLESTON, SOUTH
CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Farmer's and Exchange Bank was designed
by Charleston architects, Edward C. Jones and
Francis D. Lee, in 1853 and built one year
later. The bank, later used as a Western Unmion
Telegraph Company, is located within
Charleston’s historic district on East Bay
Street, a significant commercial artery just
north of Broad Street. This rare example of
Moorish style the design is thought to have
been influenced by Washington Irving's The
Alhambra, published in 1851 and illustrated by
Felix 0.C. Darley. It was nominated to the
National Register in April of 1973 because it is
one of the few examples of Moorish
architecture in the nation.

The exterior is designed with pale Jersey and
dark Connecticut brownstone while the
continuation of the exotic motifs on the
interior are expressed in plaster. The
horseshoe arches are reminiscent of Spanish
Mosques. In the late 1960's the building was
scheduled for demolition but was converted to
a law office in an early preservation attempt.
The small rear addition was added in 1969
and many of the historic details were
encapsulated within the walls during this
renovation but since then, the most intrusive
alterations have been reversed. The building
has been used as a restaurant since the mid
1980’s. Despite these many changes, the
Farmer's and Exchange bank retains many
inimitable and dynamic characteristics, and is
a unique example of a mid nineteenth century
commercial building.

TEAM MEMBERS

MEAGAN BACO
DARIUS BAGDONAVICIUS
JEREMY BRADHAM
LAURA BURGHARDT
JESSICA GOLEBIOWSKI
SERKAN GUNAY
SARAH KOLLAR

EMILY MARTIN
BRIDGET O'BRIEN
MATTHEW PELZ

MEG PETERS

SARAH WELNIAK
CHASE WILLISTON
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COVER PAGE

SITE FLAN

FLOOR PLANS

EAST BAY STREET ELEVATION
ELEVATIONS

TRANSVERSE SECTION A - A
WEST CROSS SECTION B - B, IRON WORK DETAILS
INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

DOOR DETAILS

WINDOW DETAILS

CEILING PLAN AND DETAILS
COLUMN DETAILS

Sketch of East Bay Street based
on early 20th Century view

CLEMSON UNIVERSITY & COLLEGE OF CHARLESTON
MASTER OF SCIENCE IN HISTORIC PRESERVATION

ASSISTANT PROFESSOR: ASHLEY ROBBINS, AIA

SOUTH CAROLINA

BANK

EXCHANGE
CHARLESTON COUNTY
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CHARLESTON

141 EAST BAY STREET

1

INTERIOR




VICINITY MAP

MAP OF CHARLESTON

1AAYLS AvE LsSVd

10

1/8"=1"-0
5
_ — —————
1:98

SITE PLAN

o 1
—
METERS

3% OUIHL AHING 3208d MOSHIL 34 '3 STWVHD




SECOND FLOOR PLAN
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The Historic American Buildings Survey

of the National Park Service,
In cooperation with
The Athenaeum of Philadelphia and
The American Institute of Architects

presents

THIRD PLACE

in the 2008 competition for the

CHARLES E. PETERSON PRIZE

O

Sharon Berner, Christine Bernick, Vicki Birenberg,
Kathryn Gallagher, Jennifer Harrmon, Katherine McManus,
Mary Ottoson, Amy Porter, Molly Sargent, Emily Spreng,
Sherine Sublette, Nivine Tawancy

of the
School of the Art Institute of Chicago
for HABS measured drawings of the
Pullman Greenstone Church
to be deposited in the Library of Congress

Chief, Historic American Buildings Survey




PULLMAN

reenstove
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The town of Pullman was constructed between 1880-1884 under the direction of George Pullman, founder of the Pull-
man Palace Car Company. Designed by architect Solon S. Beman and landscape architect Nathan Barrett, the town was
one of the first planned communities in the United States. Beman and Barrett developed plans for the entire town built
on a site adjacent to Lake Calumet, 14 miles south of Chicago. The town combined rail car-building operations, housing,
and public facilities for its 12,000 inhabitants.

OK._COUN

CO

Pullman’s main function was utilitarian, but its architecture, which blended Romanesque Revival and Queen Anne styles
and incorporated elegant detailing of its buildings, reflected an emphasis on aest and high quality. It is not surpris-
ing that much of the original fabric of the town remains visible today.

CHICAGO

Pullman was awarded the ‘World's Most Perfect Town’ designation at the Prague International Hygienic and Pharma-
ceutical Exposition of 1896 for its well-designed plan, including green spaces and a sewage system, distinctive architec
ture, and housing with modern conveniences, such as indoor plumbing. The housing ranged from single-family residences
for Pullman executives to boarding houses and rowhouses for factory workers.

PULLMAN GREENSTONE CHURCH

11211 SOUTH ST. LAWRENCE AVENUE

Solon S. Beman was responsible for the architectural design of the wwn, and Barrett created the street layout and park
designs. The town of Pullman was Beman's first major project in Chicago and is considered one of the largest for a Chi-
cago architect at the time.

Pullman was potentially threatened by rezoning in 1960, but community efforts averted the destruction of this historic
company town. It became an Illinois state landmark in 1969, was added to the National Register of Historic Places in
1970, and was listed as a National Historic Landmark in 1971. The town became a City of Chicago landmark district in
1972.

I¥ MEPRCOUCED, FLEAIT CREDIT HIRTORSS AMERICAN BUILOINGE BURTEY. MATIONAL PARK SERVISE. NAME OF BELINEATG, DATE OF THE Dnawsd

Puliman’s original town plan inclhuded a church to be built in a prominent location. The Greenstone Church, named for

its serpentine stone cladding, occupies a central location in town, diagonally across from Arcade Park. The church is a
Richardsonian Romanesque style with Queen Anne details and id based on Henry Hobson Richardson’s Brattle Square
Church in Boston (1871}, with a rectangular floor plan and a 92-foot tower. Connected to the church is an elaborate
parsonage designed for George Pullman’s brother. Originally established as a union church for all denominations,
Greenstone sat unused after Pufiman's various denominations preferred to worship in their own churches. In 19G7, the
church was sold to the Pullman Methodist Episcopal Church. It"s current owner is the Greenstone United Methodist Church.
The Greenstone Church still retains its original picturesque appearance, but its cladding shows significant deterioration,

This project was carried out in the fall of 2007 by graduate students in the Historic Preservation and Architecture pro-
grams at the School of the Art Institute of Chicago, including Shannon Berner, Christine Bernick, Vicki Birenberg,

Katy Gallagher, Jennifer Harrman, Katiec McManus, Mary Ottoson, Amy Porter, Molly Sargent, Emily Spreng, Sherine
Sublette, and Nivine Tawancy under the guidance of Charles Pipal, AIA and teaching assistant Nicole Seguin. A nece

in the form of drawings and this narrative was graciously provided by architect Charles Gregerson. Thanks are due to
TOWER WINDOW DETAIL architect Michael Shymanski and congregation member Alton Williams for building access and on-site cooperation.

& CHARLES E. PETERSON
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V. BIRENBERG, 2007
School of the Art Institute of Chicago
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The Historic American Buildings Survey

of the National Park Service,
In cooperation with
The Athenaeum of Philadelphia and
The American Institute of Architects

presents
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in the 2008 competition for the
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O
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to be deposited in the Library of Congress
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UNIVERSITY OF LLINOIS AT
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1896

CONSTRUCTION BEGAN ON LIBRARY HALL, ALSO KNOWN AS ALTGELD HALL, ON THE UNIVERSITY OF
LLINOIS" CAMPUS ON SEPTEMBER 4, 1896 AFTER THE HEAD OF THE ARCHITECTURE DEPARTMENT, NATHAN
CLIFFORD RICKER, DEVELOPED A DESIGN THAT APPEALED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES. ALTHOUGH FUNDS HAD
BEEN SECURED FOUR YEARS EARLIER AND NUMEROUS CONCEPTS HAD BEEN GENERATED BY OTHERS, IT TOOK
RICKER'S COMPELLING DESIGN TO FINALLY SOLIDIFY A PATH FOR THIS BUILDING'S CONSTRUCTION.

THIS EXQUISITE EXAMPLE OF ROMANESQUE REVIVAL ARCHITECTURE WAS ENTIRELY DESIGNED BY
STUDENTS, FACULTY AND GRADUATES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS' ARCHITECTURE DEPARTMENT, FROM THE
FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS TO THE DOOR KNOBS AND HANDRAILS. LIBRARY HALL WAS OFFICIALLY OPENED
ON JUNE 8, 1897 DURING COMMENCEMENT. THE BUILDING, HOWEVER, WAS NOT FULLY COMPLETED UNTIL LATER
N THE YEAR, AS MUCH OF THE INTERIOR DECORATION WAS NOT FINISHED AT THE INITIAL OPENING.

THE FACADE OF THE BUILDING IS COMPLETELY CLAD IN A ROUGH HEWN SANDSTONE FROM KETTLE RIVER
QUARRY IN MINNESOTA. THOUGH ORIGINALLY A DEEP PINK COLOR, WEATHERING HAS TURNED THE BUILDING TO
S OF BLUSH AND GRAY, WHILE THE COPPER FEATURES HAVE OXIDIZED TO A DEEP GREEN COLOR. ALL OF
EMENTS HELP TO CREATE A STRIKING IMAGE AGAINST THE RED TILE ROOF THAT COVERS THE BUILDING.

ORIGINALLY, THE BUILDING HAD A MORE OPEN FIRST FLOOR PLAN FOR LIBRARY SERVICES AND MORE
DIVIDED SPACES ON THE BASEMENT AND SECOND FLOORS FOR CLASSROOMS AND A MUSEUM. COLUMN
CAPITALS, ORNAMENTATION, AND IRON WORK WERE HIGHLY DECORATED. OVER THE FIRST HALF OF THE
TWENTIETH CENTURY THE BUILDING GAINED FOUR ADDITIONS, AS THE UNIVERSITY LOOKED TO ADD SPACE FOR
THE GROWING LIBRARY AND THEN THE COLLEGE OF LAW.

ALTHOUGH MOST RECOGNIZED FOR ITS ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTY TWO FOOT TALL BELL TOWER, THE
BUILDING DID NOT ACTUALLY RECEIVE ANY BELLS UNTIL THE CLASSES OF 1914 TO 1921 DONATED FUNDS FOR
THEM AS A CLASS GIFT. LATER CLASSES WOULD DONATE THE REST OF THE BELLS NOW HOUSED AT THE TOP OF
THE TOWER, ALONG WITH AN AUTOMATIC CHIME MECHANISM THAT CONTINUES TO OPERATE IN THE TOWER TO
THIS DAY

IN 1941 THE UNIVERSITY'S BOARD OF TRUSTEES VOTED TO RENAME LIBRARY HALL TO ALTGELD HALL IN
MEMORY OF ILLINOIS GOVERNOR JOHN P. ALTGELD, WHO WAS INSTRUMENTAL IN BRINGING THE BUILDING TO THE
CAMPUS. CURRENTLY, THE MATH DEPARTMENT OCCUPIES THE MAJORITY OF THE BUILDING INCLUDING THE
LIBRARY. THOUGH QUIETLY AGING, LIBRARY HALL (ALTGELD HALL) STILL SERVES A VITAL ROLE FOR CAMPUS LIFE
AND MAINTAINS A DISTINCTIVE SPOT, AS THE CORNER ANCHOR TO THE HISTORIC QUADRANGLE.

DRAWN BY: JOSHUA P, REAM, 2008
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XIT RANCH HEADQUARTERS

CHANNING, TEXAS

WHEN THE TEXAS STATE GOVERNMENT BEGAN TO OUTGROW ITS CAPITOL BUILDING IN THE MID 1870'S,
THREE MILLION ACRES OF UNTOUCHED LAND IN THE TEXAS PANHANDLE WERE RESERVED TO FUND THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW CAPITOL BUILDING. AFTER THE OLD BUILDING BURMED IN THE FALL OF 188l,
GOVERNOR ORAN M. ROBERTS CALLED A SPECIAL LEGISLATIVE SESSION RESULTING IN THE FORMATION OF
CAPITOL SYNDICATE, IN WHICH CHARLES AND JOHN FARWELL WERE LEADING INVESTORS. THE FARWELL
BROTHERS AGREED TO BUILD A NEW CAPITOL BUILDING, WITH AN ESTIMATED COST OF THREE MILLION
DOLLARS, IN EXCHANGE FOR THE THREE MILLION ACRES OF DESIGMATED LAND IN WEST TEXAS.

COLONEL AMOS C. BABCOCK, AN INVESTOR IN THE CAPITOL SYNDICATE, TRAVELED TO THE TEXAS
PANHANDLE THE NEXT YEAR TO SURVEY THE ACQUIRED LAND IN ORDER TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR USE
THE PRIMARILY FLAT AND ARID LANDSCAPE STRETCHED OVER 220 MILES NORTH AND SOUTH ALONG THE MEW
MEXICO BORDER AND WAS RICH IN POTENTIAL. UPON HIS RETURN, BABCOCK INSISTED THAT THE LAND BE
FENCED AND STOCKED WITH CATTLE IMMEDIATELY. ALTHOUGH THE FORMATION OF A RANCH WAS THE FIRST
STEP, THE CAPITOL SYNDICATE HAD SEVERAL LONG-TERM GOALS INCLUDING THE PROMOTION OF SETTLEMENT
IN THE REGION AS WELL AS THE EVENTUAL DIVISION AND SELLING OF PARCELS FOR VARIOUS USE. SEARCHING
FOR ADDITIOMAL FUNDING FOR THE CREATION OF THE RANCH, JOHN FARWELL CREATED THE CAPITOL
FREEHOLD LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY IN 1884 WITH HOPES OF ATTRACTING WEALTHY INVESTORS IN
GREAT BRITAIN. WITH FUNDING SECURED, FENCES WERE CONSTRUCTED FOR A HORSE PASTURE AT BUFFALO
SPRINGS, THE RANCH'S FIRST HEADQUARTERS. THE RANCH WAS ESTABLISHED AS THE XIT, AND OM JULY I,
1885, THE FIRST 2,500 HEAD OF CATTLE ARRIVED AT BUFFALD SPRINGS.

THE XIT RANCH CONTINUED TO GROW, AND WITHIN A YEAR, OVER 780 MILES
OF FENCE HAD BEEN ERECTED. B. H. CAMPBELL, XIT'S FIRST GENERAL MANAGER,
DIVIDED THE VAST RANCHLAND INTO EIGHT SUB-REGIONS: BUFFALO SPRINGS,
MIDDLEWATER, 0OJO BRAVO, RITA BLANCA, ALAMOSITAS, ESCARBADA, SPRING LAKE
AND CASAS AMARILLAS. THE FIRST RAILWAY TO PENETRATE THE TEXAS
PANHANDLE, THE FORT WORTH AND DENVER CITY RAILROAD COMPANY, CROSSED
INTO THE RANCHLANDS IN 1887. THE NEW TOWN OF CHANNING WAS LOCATED ON
THIS ESSENTIAL RAIL LINE, AND SOON BECAME A MAJOR SHIPPING POINT AND
CENTER FOR RANCH ACTIVITIES. THUS, A NEW MAIN XIT HEADQUARTERS WAS
ESTABLISHED IN CHANMNING, AND BEGINNING IN 1888, ALBERT G. BOYCE ASSUMED
THE ROLE OF GENERAL MAMNAGER. UNDER THE WATCH OF BOYCE, XIT REACHED IT
PEAK IN PRODUCTIVITY. BY THE TURN OF THE CENTURY, XIT EMPLOYED OVER 150
COWBOYS ON 1,000 HORSES. WITHIN ITS 1,500 MILES OF FENCE, XIT BECAME E
LARGEST ENCLOSED RANCH IN THE WORLD.

BETWEEN 1898 AND 1899, THE GENERAL OFFICES FOR THE XIT RANCH WERE
CONSTRUCTED IN CHANNING. THE TWO-ROOM BUILDING WAS CONSTRUCTED FROM
FIVE RAILROAD CARS OF RED BRICKS, AND WAS FINISHED WITH VICTORIAN
DETAILING TO IMPRESS ITS VISITORS. WITH ITS WRAPAROUND PORCH, TURNED
WOOD COLUMNS, DECORA E EAVE BRACKETS, AND BRIGHTLY PAINTED TRIM, THE
XIT MAIN HEADGUARTER ASILY DISTINGUISHABLE FROM ITS SURROUNDING
RANCHING ENVIRO

BECAUSE PROFITS FROM THE XIT RANCH WERE MINIMAL, T
SELL PARCELS OF LAND IN ORDER TO REDEEM BON
OF THE XIT CA E WAS SOLD ON NOVEMBER |, 19 CH WAS FORCED TO CLOSE ITS
DOORS. PARCELS OF ORIGINAL XIT RANCHLAND REMAINED AS LATE AS 1963, BEFORE BEING SOLD BY
DESCENDENTS OF THE FARWELL BROTHERS.

[ TE ITS SHORT-LIVED SUCCESS, THE XIT RANCH THROUGH THE
DESCENDENTS OF THE ORIGINAL COWBOYS AND RANCH HANDS S ACCESSIBLE
THROUGH THE ARTIFACTS AND EXHIBITS FOUND AT T XIT MUSEUM IN DALHART, TEXAS. ALTHOUGH
NOT MANY HISTORICAL ST URES REMAIN TODAY, THE OLD XIT GENERAL OFFICE IS STILL
STANDING IN THE SMALL TOWN OF CHANMING. THE PEOPLE OF CHANNING ARE PROUD OF THIS
LASTING PIECE OF HISTORY, AND THANKS TO THE EFF S OF LOCALS DR. BILL
KIRKEMINDE, THIS STRUCTURE CAM BE SEEN TODAY IN ORIGINAL CONDITION. A RETIRED
VETERINARIAN, KIRKEMINDE SPENT OVER |16 YEARS RESTORING THE FICE THROUGH HIS OWN FUNDS.
THE STRUCTURE WAS RECORDED AS A TEXAS HISTORIC LANDMARK IN 1964.

DOCUMENTATION WAS FUNDED BY THE RANCHING HERITAGE ASSOCIATION,

ORGANIZATION FOR THE NATIONAL RANCHING HERIT NTER IN L

WHITE WORKED WITH DR. ELIZABETH LOUDEN, PROF OR AT THE TEXAS TEC RSITY COLLEGE
OF ARCHITECTURE TO INITIATE THE PROJECT. CORY EDWARDS, A GRADUATE RESEARCH ASSISTANT,
CREATED THE MEASURED DRAWINGS FROM 3D LASER SCANNER DATA AND FIELD MEASUREMENTS.

T RANCH HEADQUARTERS

"
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SHARROCK -NIBLO FARM, DALLAS
DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

THE REPUBLIC OF TEXAS GRANTED 640 ACRES IN THE W.S.PETERS COLONY TO

EVERHARD SHARROCK, JR. AND THREE OTHER MEMBERS OF HIS FAMILY IN 1837,

THE LAND WAS SURVEYED IN 1850, AND SOLD TO THOMAS J. YOUNG IN 1853. THE

LOG HOUSE AND BARN DATE FROM THIS PERIOD. THE YOUNG FAMILY HELD THE PLANK BARN
LAND UNTIL 1881. THE PLANK BARN WAS CONSTRUCTED AROUND 1820. AFTER |
SEVERAL OTHER CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP, GRADY NIBLO PURCHASED THE AR

PROPERTY IN 1934, A

HISTORIC AMERICAN
BUILDING SURVEY

w1 or

TX-3535

THE PORTION OF THE FARM WITH THE BUILDINGS BECAME THE PROPERTY OF
THE CITY OF DALLAS AS PART OF A DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL IN 2005, WITH THE
INTENT TO CREATE A HISTORIC PARK FOR PERHAPS THE ONLY PETERS COLONY
BUILDINGS IN DALLAS COUNTY REMAINING ON THEIR ORIGINAL SITES. THE SITE
ALSO CONTAINS 20TH CENTURY STRUCTURES, INCLUDING A MODIFIED FRAME
HOUSE, CHICKEN COOF, AND THE REMAINS OF FENCES.

LDG HOUSE

THE ONE-ROOM LOG HOUSE USES HAND-HEWN, SADDLE-NOTCHED SQUARE LOGS
TYPICAL OF NORTH TEXAS PRAIRIE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PERIOD, AND HAS A
RARE ORIGINAL DRY-STACKED STONE CHIMNEY WITH A LARGE HAND-HEWN LOG
MANTLE. THE HOUSE HAD AN ADJACENT ROOT CELLAR AND HAND-DUG WELL 12 SlTE PLAN FEET 1*=30-0r
FEET IN DIAMETER AND 25 FEET DEEP CUT INTO THE LIMESTONE ESCARPMENT.

THE LOG BARN IS A DOUBLE-CRIB STRUCTURE WITH A CENTER PASSAGE USING METERS 1:380 0 METERS 124 000
UNCHINKED HAND-SQUARED LOGS WITH SADDLE-NOTCHED CORNERS. THERE . —

ARE CONTEMPORANEOUS PLANK AND HEWN LOG ROOMS ON THE NORTH SIDE OF

EACH CRIB. AS WITH THE HOUSE, THE SHAKE ROOF HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH

CORRUGATED METAL. A WOOD CRIB GATE WITH MORTISED SLATS HAS THE ENDS

OF ITS TOP RAIL INSERTED INTO WOOD HINGES.

THE PLANK BARN IS CONSTRUCTED OF MILLED WOOD STUDS AND PLANKS WITH
AN INTERIOR FACE, THE BARN HAS A PLANK FLOOR ON HEAVY TIMBERS. A SIDE
PORCH EXTENDING ALONG THE EAST SIDE PROVIDED A PROTECTED WORK AREA.
THE BARN WAS SEVERELY DAMAGED BY STORMS IN 2007. EVIDENCE EXISTS OF
AN ATTACHED PORCH AT THE NORTH END.

GRADY MIBLO ROAD DALLAS DALLAS COUNTY TENAS

SHARROCK-NIBLO FARM

DOCUMENTATION OF THE SHARROCK-NIBLO FARM WAS UNDERTAKEN IN SPRING
AND SUMMER OF 2007 UNDER THE DIRECTION OF ROBERT B. WARDEN AND DAVID
G. WOODCOCK OF THE CENTER FOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION AT TEXAS A&M
UNIVERSITY. THE FIELD RECORDING UTILIZED HAND DRAWING AND
MEASUREMENT, DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHY, LASER THEODOLITE MEASUREMENTS,
AND 3D LASER SCANNING. THE FINAL DRAWINGS WERE PRODUCED IN AUTOCAD
2005.

THE TEAM MEMBERS WERE ARCHITECTURE STUDENTS JUSTIN CURTSINGER,
JEFF DAULTON, FILIPA GODINHO, ANNE GREEN, MORGAN HARRISON, LESLIE
LEFFKE, AND ALEXIS MCKINNEY AND ANTHROPOLOGY STUDENTS NINA CHICK
AND DANA PERTERMANN.

THE DOCUMENTATION WAS SUPPORTED BY A RESEARCH GRANT FROM

QUIMBY/MCCOY PRESERVATION ARCHITECTURE, LLP, DALLAS AS PART OF A

PARK AND PRESERVATION MASTER PLAN CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF DALLAS,

TEXAS. MARCEL QUIMBY, FAIA, PRINCIPAL IN CHARGE, WILLIS C. WINTERS, FAIA 2

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF PARK AND RECREATION, CITY OF SECTION A-A ELEVATION FEET 1 1/2°=1'-Q"

DALLAS. LOG BARN WEST CRIB GATE DETAIL

ERSON PRIZE £

SEF

TENAS AAM UNIVERSITY
CEMTER FOR HERITAGE CONSERVATION

2008 CHARL
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SHARROCK LOG HOUSE
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THE SINGLE-PEN LOG HOUSE, POSSIBLY )

CONSTRUCTED BY THE SHARROCK FAMILY, / _ ROOT CELLAR AND
APPEARS TO DATE FROM CIRCA. 1850. THE 3 STAIR TO HOUSE SHARROCK LOG HOUSE
STRUCTURE IS 15 FEET X 15 FEET ON PLAN AND - " 11 y

USES HAND-HEWN, SADDLE-NOTCHED SQUARED 2 A

LOGS 6 INCHES WIDE AND VARYING FROM 6

INCHES TO 12 INCHES DEEP. THE ORIGINAL

CHINKING, PROBABLY OF MUD, LIME AND A

BINDING MATERIAL, HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH

CONCRETE, CAUSING SIGNIFICANT DAMAGE TO

SOME OF THE LOGS. THE FLOOR IS ROUGH

CONCRETE. THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF AN

EARLIER WOOD FLOOR SUGGESTING THAT THE

ORIGINAL FLOOR WAS RAMMED EARTH.

TX-3535-A

|

THE MOST SIGNIFICANT FEATURE OF THE
HOUSE IS THE DRY-STACKED STONE CHIMNEY
AT THE WEST END, WITH AN INTERNAL FIRE
AREA OF 4 FEET BY 2 FEET, SPANNED BY A
LARGE HAND-HEWN LOG MANTLE.

THE HOUSE HAS A STORAGE FLOOR AT THE
EAVES LEVEL SUPPORTED ON FOUR 7 INCH BY 3
Hi ISTS.
INCH HAND HEWN WOOD JOISTS HAND DUG WELL AND
LATER CONCRETE PUMP BASE

ey, MATRORAL PasL SEIRACEL MM OF DELIAEATOR, (TR 0 DA

ROOT CELLAR

THE ROOT CELLAR WAS DUG INTO THE
LIMESTONE ESCARPMENT SOME 20 FEET NORTH
WEST OF THE HOUSE. THE CELLAR IS 8 FEET BY
10 FEET AND THE FINISHED FLOOR WAS SOME &
FEET BELOW THE ORIGINAL GRADE. THE
ROUGH WOOD TIMBERS THAT SUPPORTED THE
DIRT ROOF HAVE LARGELY COLLAPSED. THE
STAIRS DUG FROM THE HOUSE SIDE TO REACH
THE CELLAR ROOM ARE COVERED BY FALLEN
DEBRIS. THE ROOT CELLAR DIRT MOUND IS
APPROXIMATELY 20 FEET IN DIAMETER.

SHARROCK-NIBLO LOG HOUSE
GRADY MIBLOFOAD DALLAS _DALLAS COUNTY _TEXAS

HAND DUG WELL

THE WELL IS SITUATED SOME 40 FEET DUE
WEST OF THE HOUSE, AND HAS AN INTERNAL
DIAMETER OF 12 FEET AND APPROXIMATE
DEPTH OF 25 FEET. THE WALLS ARE
CORBELLED IN TOWARDS THE SURFACE OF THE
GROUND AND THE OPENING, ORIGINALLY A
STONE WALL, NOW PARTLY BRICK, IS 5 FEET IN
DIAMETER. THE REMAINS OF AN ELECTRIC
PUMP SUGGEST THAT THIS WATER SOURCE
WAS USED FOR MANY YEARS, SERVING THE
LATER HOUSE BUILT ON ITS SOUTH SIDE.

LOG HOUSE ROOF PLAN AND ROOT CELLAR PLAN AND SECTION A-A T
METERS 1:48

2098 CHARLES £, P
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LATER WINDOW OPENING AND
TAR PAPER OVER PLYWOOD

S o
TX-3535-A

CONCRETE PAD

|

ROUGHLY NOTCHED LOGS BOARD AND BATTEN DOOR
VARY FROM 5" TO 11" DEEP, ' 2-4" ¥ 6-0r
SQUARED TO & WIDE

CHINKING REPLACED WITH W iy - 6 X 4 HAND HEWN CEILING
CONCRETE LR o BPEE! JOIST WITH 5 1/2° X 34
=, BOARDS OVER

_SECTION LINE

A

l = B LATER HATCH TO RDOF SPACE

DRY STACKED FIELD STONE . 107 X 7" BEAM OVER FIRE
CHIMMNEY : PLAGE OPENING

Yo T AL BLLDSSE ST, MATIIMAL FARK BRAON, 56

LATER CONCRETE FLOOR
DATE UNKNOWN

SHARROCK-NIBLO LOG HOUSE
GRADY MIBLO ROAD  DALLAS  DALLAS COUNTY TEXAS

CONCRETE PAD SOUTH EAST CORNER

. IN PARTIAL COLLAPSE
ORIGINAL DOOR MISSING + e e (STABILIZED 2007)

FEET 3/4"=1'-0F

FLOOR PLAN

2008 CHARLES & PETERSON PRI

METERS 1:16




DRY STACKED FIELD STONE
CHIMNEY, FLUE DE
ESTIMATED

BUILDING SURVEY

HISTORIC AMERICAN

TX-3536-4

|

10 X 7° BEAM AT FIREPLACE
OPENING

FIRE BOX PARTIALLY PARGED
WITH CEMENT SLURRY

TEXAS

SECTION A-A ——

METERS 1:16

LATER CORRUGATED METAL ROOF ON
1* X 5 BATTEN NAILED TO 4" ROUNDED
RAFTER, HALVED AND PEGGED AT
RIDGE, AND NUMBERED |, Il, Il ETC
FROM FIREPLACE WALL

GRADY NIBLO ROAD DALLAS  DALLAS COUNTY

6 X 4° CEILING JOISTS TENONED
INTO TOP WALL LOGS

SHARROCK-NIBLO LOG HOUSE

[ ————————————————— SR R

ROUGHLY NOTCHED LOG WALLS LOG WALL VARIES FROM 5' TO 11
HAND HEWN TO & THICK LOGS WITH LATER PORTLAND
5 [ CEMENT CHINKING

BASE LOG & X512 ) [ : BASE LOG10°X T

SECTION B-B FEET 3/4"=1'-C"

METERS 1:16
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TER-3835-A,

TAR PAPER OVER PLYWOOD
COVERS LATER WINDOW
OPENING

FEET 3/4"=1'-0¢

NORTH ELEVATION

METERS 116

SHARROCK-NIBLO LOG HOUSE
GRADY NIBLO ROAD DALLAS  DALLAS COUNTY TEXAS

- D, LA SRR T

FEET 3/4"=1'-0r

EAST ELEVATION
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METERS 1:16
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g FLOOR BOARDS
ON & DIAMETER
LOG JOISTS ON
BOIS D'ARC PIERS

'OLD FENCE LINE ' — { DIRT FLOOR

ROOF LINE ) i COLLAPSED LOGS

LEAN TO (LATER)-
SAWN LUMBER AND POLES
CORRUGATED METAL ROOF

FLOOR PLAN

CORRUGATED METAL
END WALL (LATER)

FEEDER 2°%X4"
NAILED

OIRT FLOOR

¢— HINGED GATE OVER -~ §

& FLOOR BOARDS
OMN 8° DIAMETER
LOG JOISTS ON
BOIS D'ARC PIERS

DIRT FLOOR

ROOF LINE

"LINE OF BACK FENCE

BOARDED ROOMS
WITH 34" BOARDS
VARY 8 TO 5 DEEP
WITH 4"X4* FRAMES
ALL SAWN LUMBER

SADDLE NOTCHED
LOG CRIBS HAND
SQUARED & WIDE X
5 TO 11" DEEP

FENCE LINE
BARBED WIRE AND
CORRUGATED METAL

FEET 1/2°=1-C¢

NORTH

HISTORIC AMERICAN
BUILDING SURVEY

SHARROCK-NIBLO LOG BARN

GRADY NIBLO ROAD  DALLAS  DALLAS COUNTY  TEXAS
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METERS 124
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METERS 12

LATER LEAN TO SHED
PARTIAL COLLAPSE
SECTION A-A

CORRUGATED METAL ROOF
ON 1" X 3 BATTENS ON 4 *

RAFTERS
SQUARED ATE X 5" TO 11"

SADDLE NOTCHED LOGS
DEEP

SECTION B-B
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& X 9 LOG CONTINUOUS
THROUGH END OF CRIB
(TYPICAL) APPROX. 36-0"
IN LENGTH

SECTION C-C

FEET 1@ =10

CORUGATED METAL GABLE

STORE ROOMS WITH 34"
SAWN BOARDS WITH
BATTENS ON 4" X 4" SAWN
FRAMES

9" FLOOR BOARDS ON &
DIAMETER LOG JOISTS O
BOIS D'ARC PIERS

SECTION D-D

METERE 124

FEET 1/2°=10r

METERS 1:24

HISTORIC AMERICAN
BUILDING SURVEY
wwer 3 or B swer

TX-3535-8

J

SHARROCK-NIBLO LOG BARN
GRADY NIELO ROAD _DALLAS _DALLAS COUNTY _TEXAS
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TX-3838.-C

;

POS D ! B -
OF HIP RAFTER 3 By : ero)
DECEMEBER 2006 i S Wy ‘

COVERED OPEN AREA

2" X 4" RAFTERS 24" ON CENTER
WITH CORRUGATED ROOF
OVER ORIGINAL SHINGLES

TEXAS

2" X & SAWN STUDS 24" ON
CENTER ON EXTERIOR WITH
1" X 8" PLANKS ALTERMNATELY
SPACED THROUGH JUNCTION
AND NAILED FROM INSIDE

POST HOLE

GRADY NIBLO ROAD DALLAS  DALLAS COUNTY

FALLEN 2* X 4* @ FLOOR BOARDS ON 2° X&'
PORCH RAFTERS JOISTS ON LOG SLEEPERS

SHARROCK-NIBLO PLANK BARN

EVIDENCE OF COLLAPSED 0N - —— = ' RTo T e

= | s Lot ROOF AND SOUTH CORMNER
L FAN TO PORCH. - ) 7 e « ; et AR COLLAPSED AFTER MAJOR
DECEMBER 2006 i iy 7 s | B . o . r STORMS: MAY 2007

FLOOR PLAN FEET 1210

METERS 124
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BOARD AND BATTEN GABLE
END

WEST WALL COLLAPSED:
MAY 2007

SOUTH ELEVATION

FEET 12°=1-0r

LINE OF FALLEN NORTH LEAN
TO PORCH, WALL FRAGMENT
REMAINED: JUNE 2007

WEST ELEVATION

METERS 1:24

WEST WALL COLLAPSED AND
CORRUGATED ROOF TORM
OFF IN MAY 2007 STORMS.

FEET 12'=10r

METERS 124

HISTORIC AMERICAN

\ =

BUILDING SURVEY
wanr 2 or 3 wawr

|

T

TX-3535-C

|

TINAS ARM LISVEPSTY
CENTER FOR MEFITAGE CONSERVATION
MATIOMAL AT SERMCE

SHARROCK-NIBLO PLANK BARN

GRADY NIBLO ROAD DALLAS  DALLAS COUNTY  TEXAS
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LINE OF FALLEMN NORTH LEAN
TO PORCH: RAFTERS AND
BOARD FRAGMENTS REMAIN

NORTH ELEVATION

FEET 12 =1-0r

CORRUGATED METAL OVER
EARLIER SHINGLE ROOF ON
2 X 4" RAFTERS

SOUTH LEAN TO PORCH
EXISTS: REMOVED TO SHOW
PLANK WALL

EAST ELEVATION

METERS 124

FEET 1/2°=1'-(r

NORTH LEAN TO PORCH
COLLAPSED BUT EVIDENCE
REMAINED: DECEMBER 2006

FALLEN RAFTERS AND
BOARDS: JUNE 2007

METERS 1:24

HISTORIC AMERICAN
BUILDING SURVEY

SHARROCK-NIBLO PLANK BARN

i I

TX-3838-C

GRADY NIBLO ROAD DALLAS DALLAS COUNTY TENAS




The Historic American Buildings Survey

of the National Park Service,
In cooperation with
The Athenaeum of Philadelphia and
The American Institute of Architects

presents

HONORABLE MENTION

in the 2008 competition for the

CHARLES E. PETERSON PRIZE

O

Weston Davey, Mary Ottoson, Mira Patel, Jennifer Reep,
Benjamin Roberts, Molly Sargent, Nicole Seguin,
Nicola Spasoff, Emily Spreng, Rebecca Young

of the
School of the Art Institute of Chicago
for HABS measured drawings of the

Chicago Athletic Association
to be deposited in the Library of Congress

Chief, Historic American Buildings Survey
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CHICAGO ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION

AREA PLAN

WINDOW

DETAIL

4

Founded in 1890 by elite Chicagoans such as Marshall Field,
Cyrus McCormick, and A.G Spalding, the Chicago Athletic
Association was a not-for-profit organization that provided a
setting for athletic, business, and social activities. In 1915, when
member William Wrigley bought the Chicago Cubs, the team
adopted the club’s logo, permanently securing its place in Chicago
history.

Built in 1893, the 12 South Michigan Avenue building was
designed by architect Henry Ives Cobb, and is an excellent
example of the Venetian Gothic Revival style. This style is rarely
seen in Chicago, and the Chicago Athletic Association exemplifies
it to the fullest through its use of patterned brick and intricately
carved limestone. The architect, who was also a club member,
designed several notable buildings such as the Chicago Historical
Society, the Newberry Library, and several buildings at the
University of Chicago.

The building’s addition, located at 71 East Madison Street was
built in 1906 and expanded in 1926 by architects Schmidt,
Garden, and Martin. Both the building and its annex are
contributing structures within the city’s Historic Michigan
Boulevard landmark district, which extends from Randolph Street
south to 11th Street.

The building’s principal fagade, based on the Doges Palace in
Venice, was designed to give the Chicago Athletic Association a
distinct identity when viewed from the lakefront, particularly by
visitors to the World’s Columbian Exposition of 1893. The
building remains an integral part of the Historic Michigan
Boulevard District to this day as a prominent feature of the
streetwall on the western edge of Millennium Park—one of the
most heavily visited sites in the city.

This project was carried out by graduate students in the School of

the Art Institute’s Historic Preservation Program during Spring,

2008. The team included Weston Davey, Mary Ottoson, Mira
Patel, Jennifer Reep, Benjamin Roberts, Molly Sargent, Nicole
Seguin, Nicola Spasoff, Emily Spreng, and Rebecca Young
working under the guidance of Charles Pipal, ATA, We would like
to thank Songy Partners and Michael Emerson for access, and
especially building engineer Nick Bougioukos for his support and
dedication to the building.

- B, ROBERTS, M. SARGENT, 2008

CHICAGO ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION

12 SOUTH MICHIGAN AVEMUE, CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
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~

~

OFFICE

EXTERIOR MATERIALS

ROMAN BRICK IN RUNNING BOND WITH DIAPER PATTERN IN RED
AND DARK BROWN ALONG TOP OF BUILDING

ASHLAR INDIAMNA LIMESTONE BASE, TRIM, CORNICE AND
DECORATIVE ELEMENTS

122Y(+k-)

NATATORIUM
60-2°%69'-10"

O

O

!

OFFICE
AT

HALL LOBBY £1=
AB-T 180" 200037

VESTIBULE
e

g

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

we e E SPRENG, 2008

CHICAGO ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION

12 SOUTH MICHIGAN AVENUE., CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINCIS
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SIXTH FLOOR
eFLE\:.:\'[ ON =73 -1 112"

FIFTH FLOOR
L e

SQUASH COURT

ELEVENTH FLOOR G
ELEVATION = 13§ - §°

L

FENCING GYMNASIUM

DINING ROOM

KITCHEN

(B

. .

RUNNING

| W

GYMMNASIUM

| ]]m Eq TRACK

i

GRILL ROOM

SECTION

TENTH FLOOR

ELEVATION = 127 - 3 S

e MICOLA SPASOFF, 2008
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